Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information Together with Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

**Combined Jewish Philanthropies of Greater Boston, Inc. and Affiliates** 

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Contents	Page
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants	3
Consolidated Financial Statements	
Consolidated statements of financial position	5
Consolidated statement of activities	6
Consolidated statement of functional expenses	8
Consolidated statements of cash flows	10
Notes to consolidated financial statements	11
Supplemental Consolidating Schedules	
Consolidating schedule of financial position by functional area	31
Consolidating schedule of activities by functional area	32

Notes to supplemental schedules

33



#### GRANT THORNTON LLP

75 State St., 13th Floor Boston, MA 02109-1827

**D** +1 617 723 7900

+1 617 723 3640

#### REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Board of Directors of:

Combined Jewish Philanthropies of Greater Boston, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Combined Jewish Philanthropies of Greater Boston, Inc. and Affiliates (collectively, the "Entity"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

# Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

# Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



#### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Combined Jewish Philanthropies of Greater Boston, Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of their changes in net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

# Supplementary information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The consolidating schedules of financial position and activities by functional area are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures. These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Boston, Massachusetts November 19, 2021

Grant Thornton LLP

# **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION**

# As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

	2021	 2020
ASSETS		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 8,354	\$ 10,275
Contributions receivable, net (Note 3)	28,762	31,007
Gifts and bequests receivable (Note 4)	5,505	6,070
Returned allocations receivable, net (Note 5)	3,289	4,733
Agency receivables, net (Note 6)	1,051	1,097
Investments (Notes 7 and 8)	2,424,422	2,029,293
Property and equipment, net (Note 9)	28,806	30,803
Other assets (Note 9)	3,995	 2,745
Total assets	\$ 2,504,184	\$ 2,116,023
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS		
LIABILITIES		
Allocations payable	\$ 44,884	\$ 45,998
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	2,186	2,632
Obligations for funds managed for others (Note 10)	29,776	23,395
Payroll protection program loan payable (Note 15)	-	2,843
Line of credit payable (Note 11)	7,500	20,000
Other liabilities	 1,730	3,777
Total liabilities	 86,076	 98,645
Minority interest in JCEP (Note 1)	443,521	414,649
NET ASSETS (Note 12)		
Without restrictions:		
From operations and reserves	118,595	99,535
Donor advised funds	1,682,939	1,366,023
With restrictions	 173,053	137,171
Total net assets	 1,974,587	1,602,729
Total liabilities and net assets	\$ 2,504,184	\$ 2,116,023

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

## For the year ended June 30, 2021 (With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2020) (In thousands)

Number   National Performance   National Pe			2021				2020	
SUPPORT AND REVENUE					With	Total		Total
Campaign contributions, net Giffs and bequests         \$42,549 161,308 617 70 161,925 70		Res	strictions	Res	strictions	 Total		Total
Gifts and bequests         161,036         617         161,925         144,245           Change in split-interest agreements         231         (19)         212         (20,20)           Grants and other allocations         876         -         876         731           Donated services         16         -         16         731           Portical support         12839         -         2,839         -           Net assets released from restrictions (Note 12)         14,368         (14,368)         -         22,747         201,212           Investment return, net (Note 7)         383,159         29,569         412,728         (20,414)           Rental income         403         2,569         412,728         (20,414)           Rental income         23         -         403         406           Ever revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           Total revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           Total support and revenue         604,792         35,882         640,674         182,766           EXPENDITURES         Programmaliocations and distributions         11,827         1,524         1,524           Programmalic e							_	
Change in split-interest agreements (Grants and other allocations (Sar 6 or 87 6 or 731 to 16 or 87 6 or 731 to 12 to 15 or 87 0 or		\$		\$		\$	\$	
Grants and other allocations         876         - 876         731           Donated services         16         - 16         12           Forgiveness of delk (Note 15)         2,839	·							
Donated services   16					(19)			` ,
Program allocations and distributions   11,827   11,827   12,839					-			
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 12)         14,368         (14,368)         -         -           Total support         222,187         5.291         227,478         201,212           Investment return, net (Note 7)         383,159         29,569         412,728         (20,414)           Rental income         403         -         403         406           Event revenue         23         -         23         1,525           Administrative fees         42         -         42         37           Transfer between funds based on donors' intent         (1,022)         1,022         -         -           Total revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           Total revenue         604,792         35,882         640,674         182,766           EXPENDITURES         Program allocations and distributions:         1         -         38,151         -         38,151         -         38,151         -         11,827         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         11,827         11,827         15,745         15,745         15,745         10,088         166,905         10,088         166,905         166,905         10,0					-			12
Total support   222,187   5,291   227,478   201,212     Investment return, net (Note 7)   383,159   29,569   412,728   (20,414)     Rental income   403   - 403   406     Event revenue   23   - 33   1,525     Administrative fees   42   - 42   37     Transfer between funds based on donors' intent   (1,022)   1,022       Total revenue   382,605   30,591   413,196   (18,446)     Total support and revenue   604,792   35,882   640,674   182,766      EXPENDITURES	, ,				(14 260)	2,000		_
Investment return, net (Note 7)   383,159   29,569   412,728   (20,414)     Rental income	Net assets released from restrictions (Note 12)		14,300		(14,300)	 		
Rental income   403   - 403   406     Event revenue   23   - 23   1,525     Administrative fees   42   - 42   37     Transfer between funds based on donors' intent   (1,022)   1,022       Total revenue   382,605   30,591   413,196   (18,446)     Total support and revenue   604,792   35,882   640,674   182,766     EXPENDITURES	Total support		222,187		5,291	 227,478		201,212
Event revenue         23         -         23         1,525           Administrative fees         42         -         42         37           Transfer between funds based on donors' intent         (1,022)         1,022         -         -           Total revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           EXPENDITURES           Program allocations and distributions:         8         5         640,674         182,766           EXPENDITURES         8         7         38,151         -         38,151         38,151         38,151         38,151         38,151         18,277         11,827         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         15,745         10,088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         16,905         10,1088         10,202         1,404         1,404         1,404         1	Investment return, net (Note 7)		383,159		29,569	412,728		(20,414)
Administrative fees         42         -         42         -	Rental income		403		-	403		406
Transfer between funds based on donors' intent         (1,022)         1,022         -         -         -           Total revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           Total support and revenue         604,792         35,882         640,674         182,766           EXPENDITURES         Total support and distributions:         8,452         38,151         -         38,151         36,452           Program allocations and distributions         38,151         -         38,151         11,827         15,745           Donor advised fund grants         101,688         -         101,688         166,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general         4,020         -         4,020         4,404           Fundraising         12,252         -         12,252         14,35           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         -         16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929	Event revenue		23		_	23		1,525
Transfer between funds based on donors' intent         (1,022)         1,022         -         -         -           Total revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           Total support and revenue         604,792         35,882         640,674         182,766           EXPENDITURES         Total support and distributions:         8,452         38,151         -         38,151         36,452           Program allocations and distributions         38,151         -         38,151         11,827         15,745           Donor advised fund grants         101,688         -         101,688         166,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general         4,020         -         4,020         4,404           Fundraising         12,252         -         12,252         14,35           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         -         16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929	Administrative fees		42		_	42		37
Total revenue         382,605         30,591         413,196         (18,446)           Total support and revenue         604,792         35,882         640,674         182,766           EXPENDITURES           Program allocations and distributions:         38,151         -         38,151         36,452           Programmatic expenditures         11,827         -         11,827         15,745           Donor advised fund grants         101,688         -         101,688         166,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general program allocations and distributions         162,622         -         16,272         14,020         -         4,020         -         4,020         -         16,272         18,839         -         16,272         18,839         -         16,272         18,839 <td>Transfer between funds based on donors' intent</td> <td></td> <td>(1,022)</td> <td></td> <td>1,022</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>_</td>	Transfer between funds based on donors' intent		(1,022)		1,022	-		_
Total support and revenue   604,792   35,882   640,674   182,766			( )- /			 		
EXPENDITURES   Program allocations and distributions:   Program allocations and distributions:   Program allocations   38,151   - 38,151   36,452   Program allocations   11,827   - 11,827   15,745   15,745   Donor advised fund grants   101,688   - 101,688   166,905   Total program allocations and distributions   151,666   - 151,666   219,102   Management and general   4,020   - 4,020   4,404   Fundraising   12,252   - 12,252   14,435   Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures   16,272   - 16,272   18,839   Total expenditures   167,938   - 167,938   237,941   Net results from operations   436,854   35,882   472,736   (55,175)   Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)   (100,939)   - (100,939)   8,929   Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)   61   - 61   - Change in net assets   335,976   35,882   371,858   (46,246)   Net assets at beginning of year   1,465,558   137,171   1,602,729   1,648,975   1,6	Total revenue		382,605		30,591	413,196		(18,446)
Program allocations and distributions:         38,151         - 38,151         36,452           Program allocations of programmatic expenditures         11,827         - 11,827         15,745           Donor advised fund grants         101,688         - 101,688         166,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         - 151,666         219,102           Management and general         4,020         - 4,020         - 4,020         4,044           Fundraising         12,252         - 12,252         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         - 16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         - 167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         - (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         - 61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Total support and revenue		604,792		35,882	640,674		182,766
Program allocations and distributions:         38,151         38,151         38,151         36,452           Program allocations and distributions         11,827         - 11,827         15,745           Donor advised fund grants         101,688         - 101,688         166,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         - 151,666         219,102           Management and general         4,020         - 4,020         - 4,020         - 4,020         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         - 16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         - 167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         - (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         - 61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	EXPENDITURES							
Program allocations         38,151         -         38,151         36,452           Programmatic expenditures         11,827         -         11,827         15,745           Donor advised fund grants         101,688         -         101,688         166,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general         4,020         -         4,020         4,020         4,020         12,252         12,252         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         -         16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         -         167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         -         61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171								
Programmatic expenditures Donor advised fund grants         11,827 15,745 101,688         - 11,827 101,688         15,745 160,905           Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         - 151,666         219,102           Management and general Fundraising         4,020         - 4,020         4,040           Fundraising         12,252         - 12,252         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         - 16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         - 167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         - (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         - 61         - 61           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975			38.151		_	38.151		36.452
Total program allocations and distributions         151,666         -         151,666         219,102           Management and general Fundraising         4,020         -         4,020         4,040           Fundraising         12,252         -         12,252         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         -         16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         -         167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         -         61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975					-			,
Management and general Fundraising       4,020 12,252 - 12,252 14,435         Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures       16,272 - 16,272 18,839         Total expenditures       167,938 - 167,938 237,941         Net results from operations       436,854 35,882 472,736 (55,175)         Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)       (100,939) - (100,939) - (100,939) 8,929         Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)       61 - 61 - 61 - 61 - 61         Change in net assets       335,976 35,882 371,858 (46,246)         Net assets at beginning of year       1,465,558 137,171 1,602,729 1,648,975	Donor advised fund grants		101,688		-	 101,688		166,905
Fundraising         12,252         -         12,252         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         -         16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         -         167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         -         61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Total program allocations and distributions		151,666			151,666		219,102
Fundraising         12,252         -         12,252         14,435           Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures         16,272         -         16,272         18,839           Total expenditures         167,938         -         167,938         237,941           Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         -         61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Management and general		4 020		_	4 020		4 404
Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures 16,272 - 16,272 18,839  Total expenditures 167,938 - 167,938 237,941  Net results from operations 436,854 35,882 472,736 (55,175)  Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7) (100,939) - (100,939) 8,929  Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1) 61 - 61 - 61 - Change in net assets 335,976 35,882 371,858 (46,246)  Net assets at beginning of year 1,465,558 137,171 1,602,729 1,648,975					_			,
Total expenditures 167,938 - 167,938 237,941  Net results from operations 436,854 35,882 472,736 (55,175)  Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7) (100,939) - (100,939) 8,929  Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1) 61 - 61 - 61 - Change in net assets 335,976 35,882 371,858 (46,246)  Net assets at beginning of year 1,465,558 137,171 1,602,729 1,648,975	T diffaloning	-	,			 ,		,
Net results from operations         436,854         35,882         472,736         (55,175)           Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         - (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         - 61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures		16,272		<u> </u>	 16,272		18,839
Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         - (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         - 61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Total expenditures		167,938		-	 167,938		237,941
of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         -         61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Net results from operations		436,854		35,882	472,736		(55,175)
of JCEP (Note 7)         (100,939)         -         (100,939)         8,929           Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston (Note 1)         61         -         61         -           Change in net assets         335,976         35,882         371,858         (46,246)           Net assets at beginning of year         1,465,558         137,171         1,602,729         1,648,975	Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses							
of Greater Boston (Note 1) 61 - 61 - Change in net assets 335,976 35,882 371,858 (46,246)  Net assets at beginning of year 1,465,558 137,171 1,602,729 1,648,975			(100,939)		-	 (100,939)		8,929
Change in net assets       335,976       35,882       371,858       (46,246)         Net assets at beginning of year       1,465,558       137,171       1,602,729       1,648,975	Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative							
Net assets at beginning of year 1,465,558 137,171 1,602,729 1,648,975	of Greater Boston (Note 1)		61		-	61		-
	Change in net assets		335,976		35,882	371,858		(46,246)
Net assets at end of year \$ 1,801,534 \$ 173,053 \$ 1,974,587 \$ 1,602,729	Net assets at beginning of year		1,465,558		137,171	1,602,729		1,648,975
	Net assets at end of year	\$	1,801,534	\$	173,053	\$ 1,974,587	\$	1,602,729

# **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES**

# For the year ended June 30, 2020 (In thousands)

				2020	
		Without Restrictions		With	Total
	Ke	SUICUONS	Res	trictions	 TOTAL
SUPPORT AND REVENUE					
Campaign contributions, net	\$	43,538	\$	12,888	\$ 56,426
Gifts and bequests		133,466		10,779	144,245
Change in split-interest agreements		(169)		(33)	(202)
Grants and other allocations		731		-	731
Donated services		12		-	12
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 12)		17,137		(17,137)	 
Total support		194,715		6,497	201,212
Investment return, net (Note 7)		(18,541)		(1,873)	(20,414)
Rental income		406		-	406
Event revenue		1,525		-	1,525
Administrative fees		37		-	37
Transfer between funds		(205)		205	 
Total revenue		(16,778)		(1,668)	(18,446)
Total support and revenue		177,937		4,829	182,766
EXPENDITURES					
Program allocations and distributions:					
Program allocations		36,452		-	36,452
Programmatic expenditures		15,745		-	15,745
Donor advised fund grants		166,905			166,905
Total program allocations and distributions		219,102			 219,102
Management and general		4,404		_	4,404
Fundraising		14,435			 14,435
Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures		18,839			18,839
Total expenditures		237,941			237,941
Net results from operations		(60,004)		4,829	(55,175)
Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP (Note 7)		8,929		_	8,929
Change in net assets		(51,075)		4,829	(46,246)
Net assets at beginning of year		1,516,633		132,342	1,648,975
Net assets at end of year	\$	1,465,558	\$	137,171	\$ 1,602,729

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

# For the year ended June 30, 2021 (With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2020) (In thousands)

	2021						 2020	
	F	Program		agement General	Fun	ndraising	 Total	Total
COMMUNITY SUPPORT Program allocations and distributions DAF grants	\$	38,151 101,688	\$	- -	\$	-	\$ 38,151 101,688	\$ 36,452 166,905
Total community support		139,839		-		-	139,839	203,357
SALARIES AND BENEFITS		7,764		1,744		9,805	19,313	21,901
OTHER EXPENSES								
Professional fees		420		376		363	1,159	795
Consulting and temporary help		868		136		169	1,173	2,068
Conference, meetings and travel		27		10		17	54	626
Missions expenses		-		_		1	1	1,038
Event expenses		595		30		137	762	1,404
Marketing and promotion		353		79		183	615	631
Printing and publications		25		14		139	178	200
Staff expenses		128		136		95	359	467
Supplies		19		6		24	49	234
Equipment and maintenance		228		374		223	825	757
Utilities and building services		248		118		70	436	838
Allocated occupancy		421		341		436	1,198	1,318
Depreciation and amortization		645		558		590	1,793	1,857
Miscellaneous		86		98			 184	 450
Total other expenses		4,063		2,276		2,447	 8,786	12,683
Total expenses	\$	151,666	\$	4,020	\$	12,252	\$ 167,938	\$ 237,941

# **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES**

# For the year ended June 30, 2020 (In thousands)

				20	020			
			Man	agement				
	F	Program		General	Fun	draising	Total	
COMMUNITY SUPPORT								
Program allocations and distributions DAF grants	\$	36,452 166,905	\$	<u>-</u>	\$	<u>-</u>	\$	36,452 166,905
Total community support		203,357		-		-		203,357
SALARIES AND BENEFITS		8,993		2,300		10,608		21,901
OTHER EXPENSES								
Professional fees		295		281		219		795
Consulting and temporary help		1,864		99		105		2,068
Conference, meetings and travel		475		23		128		626
Missions expenses		53		-		985		1,038
Event expenses		859		60		485		1,404
Marketing and promotion		349		88		194		631
Printing and publications		33		9		158		200
Staff expenses		249		120		98		467
Supplies		206		9		19		234
Equipment and maintenance		210		352		195		757
Utilities and building services		692		84		62		838
Allocated occupancy		451		391		476		1,318
Depreciation and amortization		798		471		588		1,857
Miscellaneous		218		117		115		450
Total other expenses		6,752		2,104		3,827		12,683
Total expenses	\$	219,102	\$	4,404	\$	14,435	\$	237,941

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

# For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

		2021	2020
Cash flows from operating activities:	_		
Change in net assets	\$	371,858	\$ (46,246)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash			
provided by operating activities		4.700	4.057
Depreciation and amortization		1,793	1,857
Unrealized and realized investment (gains) losses, net		(408,749)	32,746
Contributions of securities and other investments		(45,573)	(72,565)
Proceeds from sales of donated securities		45,573	72,565
Contributions restricted for endowment		1,281	5,542
Minority interest in investment earnings of JCEP		100,939	(8,927)
Provision for uncollectible pledges, notes, loans and other receivables		95	26
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:		0.400	4 40=
Contributions receivable		2,122	1,135
Gifts and bequests receivable		565	(5,376)
Agency receivables		46	91
Returned allocations receivable		1,444	(156)
Other assets		(1,229)	1,841
Accounts payable and accrued expenses		(446)	(41)
Other liabilities		(2,047)	(126)
Allocations payable		(1,114)	 (1,599)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	-	66,558	 (19,233)
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Purchase of property and equipment		(759)	(220)
Sale of fixed assets		970	-
Purchases of investments		(372, 327)	(398,437)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments		391,787	416,177
Net cash provided by investing activities		19,671	 17,520
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Contributions restricted for endowment		(1,281)	(5,542)
Line of credit, payable		(12,500)	18,600
Payroll Protection Program Loan payable		(2,843)	2,843
Capital contributions by minority partners in JCEP		9,172	20,509
Capital withdrawals by minority partners in JCEP		(81,241)	(29,159)
Funds received from others for investment		2,003	1,262
Funds distributed to others from managed investments		(1,460)	 (1,318)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities		(88,150)	 7,195
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents		(1,921)	5,482
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		10,275	 4,793
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	\$	8,354	\$ 10,275
Supplemental disclosure:			
Cash paid for interest	\$	101	\$ 111

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

## **NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION**

Combined Jewish Philanthropies of Greater Boston, Inc. ("CJP") inspires and mobilizes the Greater Boston Jewish community to engage in building communities of learning and action that strengthen Jewish life and improve the world. Founded in 1895 as the Federation of Jewish Charities, it is one of the largest public charities in Greater Boston. CJP serves as a central convener, planner, funder, and implementer of initiatives to meet urgent needs, enhance Jewish life and learning, and foster strong connections with Israel. CJP also impacts the broader community in collaboration with local and national partners. CJP's support and revenue are derived principally from contributions, gifts and bequests from its donors, and earnings on its investments.

The consolidated financial statements include the results of the activities of the Jewish Community Endowment Pool, LLP ("JCEP") and five supporting organizations. The supporting organizations have substantially the same purpose as CJP. JCEP was created in 1998 by CJP to serve as an endowment investment solution for small to mid-size not-for-profit organizations operating under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. JCEP provides access to professional investment management, administration, and reporting for its partners. Through their partnership interests in JCEP, all partners share proportionately in the underlying money-management, operational and custody costs, and retain full access to their invested assets as outlined in the terms of JCEP's partnership agreement. As a partnership, JCEP passes all tax liabilities through to the partners and does not record a provision for income taxes.

CJP serves as Majority-in-Interest Partner and Records Partner for JCEP. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, CJP had a 73.26% and 70.65% ownership interest in JCEP, respectively. The balance of the ownership interest of JCEP at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was held by 65 and 68 other non-profit institutions located primarily in the Greater Boston area. As defined in the JCEP partnership agreement, contributions or withdrawals of partner capital to or from JCEP can be made, subject to the approval of the majority-in-interest partner. Full or substantial withdrawals of partner capital require advance written notice, may be subject to restrictions and are subject to the approval of the majority-in-interest partner, as defined in the partnership agreement.

On November 30, 2020, CJP merged with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston ("JTI"), a not-for-profit organization, resulting in the contribution by JTI of all its net assets to CJP. The merger resulted in a contribution of \$61 to CJP.

#### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") and include the accounts of CJP, JCEP and CJP's supporting organizations. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The significant accounting policies of CJP are as follows:

# Classification of Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed or time-related restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of CJP and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

<u>Without Restrictions</u>: Assets and contributions that are not subject to donor-imposed or time-related restrictions or for which restrictions have expired. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as support without restrictions.

# NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

Gifts to donor advised funds are classified as support without restrictions. Donor advised funds comprised 93.4% and 93.2% of net assets without restrictions at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

<u>With Restrictions</u>: Represent net assets which are subject to donor-imposed restrictions whose use is restricted by time and/or purpose. A portion of the organization's net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that require the organization to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time. When donor restrictions expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction ends, such net assets are reclassified to net assets without restrictions and reported on the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Another portion of net assets with donor restrictions stipulates that the corpus of the gifts be maintained in perpetuity, but allow for the expenditure of net investment income and gains earned on the corpus for either specified or unspecified purposes.

CJP reports gifts of securities, as well as land, buildings, and equipment, as support without restrictions unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.

# Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consistent primarily of cash on deposit, money market accounts or short-term obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies. Money market funds and other highly liquid debt instruments held as part of CJP's investment strategy are included within investments. Deposits in non-transaction accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") up to \$250,000. At times such cash is significantly in excess of FDIC insured limits. CJP has not experienced any losses as a result of the use of uninsured deposit amounts.

## Contributions Receivable, Net

Contributions receivable include CJP's annual and special campaigns and are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows. Conditional promises to give are not included as revenue until the conditions are met. Contributions receivable are presented net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts and net present value discount.

# Gifts and Bequests Receivable

Gifts and bequests receivable are recorded at fair value. Gifts include contributions to donor advised funds, gifts of life insurance and other gifts not specific to the annual or special campaigns. The receivable balances do not contain net present value discounts as they are expected to be received within 12 months.

# Agency Loans Receivable, Net

Agency loans are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows.

# Allowances for Uncollectible Receivables

CJP's allowances for uncollectible receivables represent management's estimate of the amounts required to state receivables at their net realizable value, is based upon management's judgments including such factors as prior collection history and type of receivable. Actual write-offs are likely to vary from this estimate.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

Allowances were as follows at June 30 (in thousands):

		2020		
Contributions receivable Receivables included in other assets	\$	1,248 1	\$	1,127 31
Agency loans receivable		46		36

## **Property and Equipment**

Property and equipment is comprised principally of real estate and improvements, furniture, computers and equipment and is stated at cost on the date of acquisition, or in the case of gifts, at the fair market or the appraised value on the date of the donation.

Depreciation and amortization are provided in amounts sufficient to allocate costs over the estimated useful lives of the underlying assets. Land is a non-depreciable asset. Property and equipment are depreciated and amortized using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements	20-40 years
New England Holocaust Memorial	50 years
Furniture, fixtures, computers and equipment	3-10 years

#### Investments

CJP's investments are managed by professional advisors under the general direction of two senior volunteer committees of CJP's Board of Directors: the Board of Managers and the Investment Committee.

Investments are stated at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices, where available. Increases or decreases in market value are recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. Where quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined either by reference to similar investments or to values established by the managers of such investments. Certain investments are not readily marketable (alternative investments) and are recorded at fair value. The fair value of investments is determined by the individual investment manager. CJP estimates that this valuation most fairly presents the amount that would have been realized had the investment been sold to a willing buyer as of the date of the financial statements. Because of the inherent uncertainties in the valuation process, the investment manager's estimate may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed. CJP has implemented policies and procedures to assess the reasonableness of the fair values provided, and it believes that the reported fair values are reasonable.

CJP holds State of Israel bonds which are held to maturity and are reported at the face value of the bonds, \$3,096 and \$3,099 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. In the opinion of management, the use of face value rather than fair value does not have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

# Allocations Payable

Allocations payable of \$44,884 and \$45,998 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, include allocations approved by CJP's Board of Directors for payment primarily between October 1, 2021 and September 30, 2022 and between October 1, 2020 and September 30, 2021, plus prior year allocations principally related to the quarters ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

## Charitable Gift Annuities and Charitable Remainder Trusts

CJP records assets received under charitable gift annuity ("CGAs") agreements and charitable remainder trusts ("CRTs") at the fair value of the assets when received by CJP. In conjunction with these gifts, CJP has recorded a liability, included in obligations for funds managed for others, equal to the present value of future cash flows expected to be paid to the beneficiaries based upon their actuarial expected lives. For CRTs, the actuarial lives were calculated based on the 2012 IAR mortality table; which takes into account updated mortality data, annuitant gender and projected mortality improvements in future years and projects life expectancies. The discount rate used for obligations for CGAs was 1.61% and 0.78% in the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

#### **Donated Services**

Volunteers have donated a significant amount of time to CJP's program services and fundraising campaigns. The value of these services is not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. However, the value of professional services donated is reported in the consolidated statements of activities.

#### Donor Advised Funds

Individuals may establish donor advised funds, whereby each fund and its related earnings can be distributed to charities recommended by the donor, subject to the approval of CJP's Board of Directors. Donor advised funds are included in net assets without restrictions and amounted to \$1,682,939 and \$1,366,023 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Donor advised fund revenue reported in gifts and bequests was \$160,600 and \$138,672 in the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. One donor comprised 70.3% and two donors comprised 51.7% of gifts and bequests for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. DAF revenue is reported net of grants to CJP which amounted to \$13,730 and \$13,626 in the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

# Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques. Certain costs for occupancy, building services, information technology and human resources are allocated based on headcount. Certain costs for marketing, finance and executive leadership are allocated based on estimates of time and effort.

#### Income Taxes

CJP and two supporting organizations are not-for-profit organizations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the "Code"), and are generally exempt from income taxes pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Three supporting organizations have elected 501(c)(2) status, with organizing documents that specify that any surplus in excess of expenses will be used to support CJP or CJP Next Generation Housing Foundation, Inc. CJP is required to assess uncertain tax positions and has determined that there were no such positions that are material to the consolidated financial statements.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

## Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to change include the fair value of investments, the allowance for uncollectible pledges, the functional allocation of expenses, and obligations for allocations payable.

#### Leases

CJP follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires lessees (for capital and operating leases) to apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at or entered into after the earliest comparative period presented in the consolidated financial statements. It requires that all leases except those with a lease term of less than 12 months be reflected on the statement of financial position. The ASU requires the lessor to record both a Right of Use ("ROU") asset and the associated liability defined as the present value of the stream of lease payments. The ROU asset is adjusted for payments made before lease commencement and initial direct costs. Initial direct costs only include those that would not have been incurred without the lease.

# Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 19, 2021, the date on which the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

#### Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications did not change total assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses or changes in net assets as reflected in the 2020 consolidated financial statements.

# **NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE, NET**

Contributions receivable as of June 30 are expected to be collected in future fiscal years as follows:

	2021			2020
Due within one year Due within two to five years	\$	19,936 10,971	\$	28,564 4,343
Total contributions receivable		30,907		32,907
Less: discount (at rates from 1% to 5.15%) Less: allowance for uncollectible pledges		(897) (1,248)		(773) (1,127)
Contributions receivable, net	\$	28,762	\$	31,007

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

Two donors comprised 35% and one donor comprised 12% of the total contributions receivable as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. There were no conditional promises to give as of June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

# **NOTE 4 - GIFTS AND BEQUESTS RECEIVABLE**

Gifts and bequests receivable were \$5,505 and \$6,070 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and do not include net present value discounts as the amounts are expected to be received within 12 months.

# NOTE 5 - RETURNED ALLOCATIONS RECEIVABLE, NET

In 1999, CJP guaranteed \$5,200 of a \$32,100 bond issue for one of its beneficiary agencies (agency) with a bond insurer. CJP recorded a liability and the commensurate expense related to this guarantee as an allocation payable in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2012, CJP entered into a non-interest-bearing note agreement with the bond insurer to fund the loan guarantee and was granted a \$5,200 subordinated mortgage on the property by the agency.

In August 2018, the agency sold its property, and a reimbursement agreement was concluded between CJP and the agency. Under the terms of the 2018 agreement, CJP released the 2012 mortgage on the property and agreed to receive all proceeds from the buyer on an \$8,000 note payable in quarterly installments. During fiscal years 2021 and 2020, CJP received \$1,600 and \$2,800, respectively, and immediately forwarded the payments to the agency. This transaction was included as other assets and other liabilities on the consolidated statements of financial position.

Beginning with the quarterly payment due July 2020, the subsequent thirteen quarterly payments of \$400, totaling \$5,200, will be retained by CJP to reimburse CJP for the amount paid in 2012 under the loan guaranty. CJP recorded this transaction as a returned allocation grant. It appears as a discounted receivable on the consolidated statement of financial position and other revenue on the consolidated statement of activities. The gross returned allocation receivable as of June 30, 2021 is scheduled to be collected in the future years as follows:

Returned allocations receivable, net	\$ 3,289
Less: discount (at rate of 4%)	 (311)
2024	400
2023	1,600
2022	\$ 1,600

# NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

# **NOTE 6 - AGENCY RECEIVABLES, NET**

CJP makes loans to some of its major agencies for the purpose of funding benefits under a retirement plan that was frozen in a prior year and has receivables from agencies for other purposes. Agency receivables consist of the following at June 30:

			2020	
Gross agency receivables Less: Discount (at rates from 1.25%-5.15%) Less: Allowance for uncollectible receivables	\$	1,536 (439) (46)	\$	1,613 (480) (36)
Agency receivables, net	\$	1,051	\$	1,097
Gross agency receivables as of June 30, 2021 are scheduled	I to be collected i	n future fisc	al years	s as follows:
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Thereafter			\$	124 179 179 179 179 696
			\$	1,536

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

## **NOTE 7 - INVESTMENTS**

Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:

	2021		 2020
Non-Pooled Investments:  Domestic Equity International Equity Private Equity/Venture Capital Hedged Equity/Credit Illiquid Credit Real Assets Fixed Income Money Market Funds State of Israel Bonds Other Investments	\$	171,831 54,187 56 4,796 29 778 21,002 508,812 3,096 667	\$ 117,177 37,331 156 3,323 13 - 19,463 435,585 3,099 479
Jewish Community Endowment Pool, LLP:		765,254	 616,626
Domestic Equity		169,677	174,967
International Equity		322,081	307,757
Private Equity/Venture Capital		130,831	92,664
Hedged Equity/Credit		566,724	496,573
Illiquid Credit		130,797	103,971
Real Assets		34,086	51,195
Fixed Income		170,941	130,932
Money Market Funds		119,613	48,436
Other assets*		14,418	 6,172
		1,659,168	 1,412,667
Total investments	\$	2,424,422	\$ 2,029,293

<sup>\*</sup> Other assets consist of receivables for investments sold.

CJP categorizes its investments as follows:

# **Domestic Equity**

Domestic equity investments are allocated to equity securities of U.S. companies of all sizes. The purpose of the domestic equity allocation is to provide a total return that will generate growth in principal value. Over the long term, the equity allocation is intended to help increase the real value of the underlying assets.

# International Equity

International equity investments are allocated to equity securities of companies located in developed, emerging and frontier market countries outside the U.S. In addition to sharing the purpose of the domestic equity allocation, international equity investments allow exposure to countries that may perform differently from U.S. equities, thereby diversifying the portfolio.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

# Private Equity/Venture Capital

Private equity/venture capital investments are allocated to equity or debt that is not publicly traded, in the equity of start-up companies or in companies embarking on new ventures or restructuring/turnaround plans. Like the other equity investments, the intended purpose is to help increase the real value of assets.

# Hedged Equity/Credit

Hedge equity/credit investments include exposure to strategies such as arbitrage, long/short equity or event-driven strategies. These investments may have exposure to both long and short positions in a wide range of underlying investments including public and private equity, fixed income securities, credit instruments, real estate, commodities and precious metals. Hedge equity/credit investments typically seek to provide equity-like returns with lower volatility than equity markets and lower correlations to equity markets than long only equity investments. In aggregate, they are expected to capture 60-65% of equity upside and 50% or less of equity downside over a full market cycle. They further serve to diversify the portfolio, smooth equity volatility and preserve the real value of the portfolio.

# **Illiquid Credit**

Illiquid credit investments include investments in various credit instruments, including bonds, loans, and other debt securities, either through direct purchase of the securities or through derivatives. The investments may also include non-performing loans of companies in financial distress with the goal of increasing the value of these loans through financial restructuring and/or operational improvements. The purpose of illiquid credit investments is to help preserve the real value of assets with less exposure to the risks of equity ownership.

#### Real Assets

Real assets investments include real estate, natural resources, commodities and securities with rates of return that may perform differently from equities. The purpose of the allocation to real assets is to provide a source of equity-like returns having lower correlations to global equity markets. These investments may also have a greater possibility of providing positive real returns in inflationary environments.

# Fixed Income and Money Market Funds

Fixed income investments include vehicles holding cash equivalents, bonds and other income securities. Money market investments may include indirect investments in the highest quality instruments available, such as Treasury bills, U.S. government agency issues, commercial paper and certificates of deposit. The purposes of the fixed income/money market allocation are to provide liquid capital for future investment or other cash needs of the Partnership. During a market dislocation, these investments offer a high degree of protection, and reduce the risk of permanent loss of capital.

# Other Investments

Other investments include real estate, fine art and other noncash contributions held for sale. CJP's policy is to sell contributions of securities upon receipt in a manner that maximizes the proceeds from the sale.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

# Summary of Investment Results

The following table summarizes realized and unrealized gains (losses) and interest and dividend income for the years ended June 30:

				2021			2020																			
		Mir		CJP		JCEP Minority Partners		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		Total		CJP	N	JCEP Minority Partners		Total
Interest and dividend income earned Realized investment gains, net Unrealized investment gains, net	\$	12,031 120,757 186,893	\$	3,026 46,672 54,428	\$	15,057 167,429 241,321	\$	18,636 4,768 (28,062)	\$	3,163 710 (9,929)	\$	21,799 5,478 (37,991)														
Total Investment Return		319,681		104,126		423,807		(4,658)		(6,056)		(10,714)														
Less: investment expenses	_	(7,892)		(3,187)	_	(11,079)		(6,827)		(2,873)		(9,700)														
Total Investment Return, net	\$	311,789	\$	100,939	\$	412,728	\$	(11,485)	\$	(8,929)	\$	(20,414)														

## **NOTE 8 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS**

- U.S. GAAP establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements. CJP classifies its investments as follows:
  - Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that CJP has the ability to access at the measurement date.
  - Level 2 Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs that other market participants would use in valuing a portfolio instrument. These may include quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk and others.
  - Level 3 Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. In situations where quoted prices or observable inputs are unavailable (for example, when there is little or no market activity for an investment at the end of the period), unobservable inputs may be used. Unobservable inputs reflect CJP's own assumptions about the factors market participants would use in valuing a portfolio instrument, and would be based on the best information available.

CJP's financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, notes payable, and debt. The recorded values of cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well as the general classification pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

# Alternative Investments

These investments are assets in classes other than stocks, bonds and cash, which are aggregated by category based on their underlying investments. The fair value of such investments is determined using the net asset value ("NAV") per share and are not included in the valuation hierarchy.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

## Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable are recorded based on non-recurring fair value measurements. Any multi-year pledges received are recorded at the present value of future cash flows with a discount rate adjusted for any market conditions to arrive at fair value.

## Gift Annuities and Charitable Remainder Trusts

Liabilities associated with split interest agreements are recorded based on non-recurring fair value measurements and are recorded at the present value of future cash flows expected to be paid to beneficiaries based upon actuarial lives.

#### **Investments**

Investments valued at quoted prices in an active market are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

# Money Market Funds

Money market funds are valued based on quoted prices in active markets and are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

#### Line of Credit

The line of credit is recorded at fair value.

## Fair Value Classification Summary

CJP has classified assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows:

	2021		2020	
Non-pooled investments: Investments in Level 1 marketable securities				
Domestic Equity International Equity Hedged Equity/Credit Fixed Income Money Market Funds Other Assets	\$	171,829 54,187 4,796 20,262 508,812 667	\$	117,175 37,331 3,322 18,606 435,585 479
		760,553		612,498
Investments in alternative investment funds				
Domestic Equity		2		2
Private Equity/Venture Capital		56		156
Hedged Equity/Credit		-		1
Illiquid Credit		29		13
Real Assets		778		-
Fixed Income		740		857
		1,605		1,029
Total non-pooled		762,158		613,527

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

	 2021	2020		
Jewish Community Endowment Pool: Investments in Level 1 marketable securities				
Domestic Equity	\$ 43,191	\$	38,747	
Hedged Equity/Credit	-		4,838	
Fixed Income	170,941		130,932	
Money Market Funds	 119,613		48,436	
Total investments in Level 1 marketable securities	333,745		222,953	
Investments in alternative investment funds				
Domestic Equity	126,486		136,220	
International Equity	322,081		307,757	
Private Equity/Venture Capital	130,831		92,664	
Hedged Equity/Credit	566,724		491,735	
Illiquid Credit	130,797		103,971	
Real Assets	 34,086		51,195	
Total investments in alternative investment funds	 1,311,005		1,183,542	
Total Jewish Community Endowment Pool, LLP	 1,644,750		1,406,495	
Investments at Fair Value	\$ 2,406,908	\$	2,020,022	

The table below presents additional information regarding investments whose fair value is estimated using the practical expedient of reported NAV as of June 30, 2021. Uncalled commitments in the table below relate to JCEP's contractual obligations with certain investment managers to contribute funds to an investment at future dates.

					Redemption Periods							
	-	Jncalled nmitments	Fair			ess Than		30 Days o 1 Year	Gre	eater Than 1 Year		
	Cor	nmunents	 Value			30 Days		o i reai		i reai		
Domestic Equity	\$	-	\$ 126,488	(1)	\$	59,623	\$	24,345	\$	42,520		
International Equity		-	322,081	(2)		290,115		26,501		5,465		
Private Equity/Venture Capital		72,468	130,887	(3)		-		-		130,887		
Hedged Equity/Credit		-	566,724	(4)		114,887		149,219		302,618		
Illiquid Credit		4,958	130,826	(5)		47,141		8,052		75,633		
Real Assets		3,265	34,864	(6)		-		-		34,864		
Fixed Income			 740	(7)						740		
Total	\$	80,691	\$ 1,312,610		\$	511,766	\$	208,117	\$	592,727		

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes investments in limited partnerships that invest in domestic equities, with various withdrawal dates as follows: For amounts less than 30 days: \$59,623 quarterly liquidation periods on the last day of the quarter with proper notice of 60 days. For the amounts greater than 30 days: \$24,345 is locked up until 12/31/21. For amounts greater than a year: \$42,520 is locked up for one to two years.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

- (2) Includes multiple investments in funds holding equity securities of companies primarily in emerging and frontier markets outside the U.S. with various tranches/withdrawal dates as follows: \$213,208 may be redeemed within 10 days and \$91,144 may be redeemed within 60 days and \$17,729 may be redeemed within 120 days.
- (3) Includes multiple investments in limited partnerships that invest in equity or debt that is not publicly traded, in the equity of start-up companies or in companies embarking on new ventures or restructuring/turnaround plans that are illiquid. These investments in the greater than one-year category are locked up until the fund closes or the general partner distributes funds.
- (4) Includes multiple investments in limited partnerships with absolute return/hedged equity strategies that have various liquidity restrictions. The investments are mostly available quarterly or annually with proper notice ranging from 30 to 120 days.
- (5) Includes multiple credit-related investments via limited partnerships with various withdrawal dates, available with proper notice of 90 days. The investments in the greater than one-year category are locked up until the funds close or the general partner distributes funds.
- (6) Includes multiple real assets investments via limited partnerships with various withdrawal dates. Investments are locked up until the funds close.
- (7) Includes fixed income investments via a limited partnership.

## NOTE 9 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The following table summarizes the major categories of property and equipment, net at June 30:

	2021			2020		
Land Buildings and improvements New England Holocaust Memorial Furniture and fixtures Computers and equipment Capital leases	\$	2,358 33,492 5,857 1,538 1,311 222	\$	3,328 33,319 5,333 1,509 1,287 222		
Total		44,778		44,998		
Accumulated depreciation and amortization		(15,972)		(14,195)		
Property and equipment, net	\$	28,806	\$	30,803		

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was \$1,793 and \$1,857 respectively.

Camp Kingswood, Inc. (CKI), a Maine not for profit corporation for which CJP serves as controlling entity and sole member, sold land and certain improvements located in Bridgton, Maine. CKI received \$308 in net cash proceeds and a note of \$1,250 at closing, which is reflected in Other Assets. Payments on the note will commence in December 2021 with an interest payment of \$50, followed by monthly payments of \$8 beginning January 2022 and ending December 2027, with a balloon payment for balance due at that

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

time. The note is secured with a second mortgage on the property and life insurance on certain parties associated with the purchaser.

#### NOTE 10 - OBLIGATIONS FOR FUNDS MANAGED FOR OTHERS

CJP allows certain other not-for-profit organizations to pool resources and invest with CJP. CJP also administers charitable gift annuities and trusts benefiting other organizations. The obligations for funds managed for others consisted of the following at June 30:

	2021			2020
Planned/deferred gift liabilities The Myra and Robert Kraft Passport to Israel Program Funds held for other organizations	\$	1,673 1,522 26,581	\$	1,781 1,513 20,101
Obligations for funds managed for others	\$	29,776	\$	23,395

## **NOTE 11 - DEBT**

## Line of Credit

CJP has a demand line of credit agreement with Century Bank for credit up to \$20,000 at interest rates of 0.5% above LIBOR. Interest rates on the line were between 0.69% and 0.77%, and total interest paid was \$67 and \$106 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The outstanding balance on the line of credit was \$7,500 and \$20,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

# **NOTE 12 - NET ASSETS WITH AND WITHOUT RESTRICTIONS**

At June 30, net assets are comprised of:

As of 2021:	Net Assets Without With Restrictions Restrictions		Total		
Net assets - operations and reserves	\$	118,595	\$ -	\$	118,595
Donor advised funds		1,682,939	5,440		1,688,379
Funds to support subsequent years' activities		-	15,575		15,575
Funds for donor-restricted initiatives		-	10,565		10,565
Unspent appreciation of endowment funds		-	52,612		52,612
Historical gift value of endowment funds			 88,861		88,861
	\$	1,801,534	\$ 173,053	\$	1,974,587

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

As of 2020:	Net Assets Without Restrictions			et Assets With estrictions	 Total		
Net assets - operations and reserves Donor advised funds Funds to support subsequent years' activities Funds for donor-restricted initiatives Unspent appreciation of endowment funds Historical gift value of endowment funds	\$	99,535 1,366,023 - - - -	\$	6,070 7,539 11,900 27,526 84,136	\$ 99,535 1,372,093 7,539 11,900 27,526 84,136		
	\$	1,465,558	\$	137,171	\$ 1,602,729		

Portion of above net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses, satisfying the restricted purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors or by the passage of time.

Net assets were released as follows during the years ended June 30:

		2020		
Releases of net assets due to the passage of time Releases of net assets restricted by performance	\$	4,538	\$	8,218
Endowment grants and expenses Designated programs		5,918 3,912		5,442 3,477
Net assets released from restrictions	\$	14,368	\$	17,137

## **NOTE 13 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS**

CJP's endowment funds consist of approximately 220 individual funds established for a variety of purposes. The endowment funds include both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as quasi-endowments. As required by U.S. GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

## Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Board of Directors has determined that absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, fiduciary standards require the preservation of the "historic dollar value" of donor-restricted endowment funds. Historic dollar value as to any donor-restricted endowment fund means the aggregate fair value of: (a) the original value of gifts donated to such fund; (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to such fund; and (c) accumulations to such fund made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. Accordingly, CJP classifies the historic dollar value of a donor-restricted endowment fund as net assets with restrictions.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

CJP's Board of Directors has adopted an endowment spending policy that is structured in a manner consistent with the Massachusetts' Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act ("UPMIFA"). UPMIFA allows for the expenditure of a portion of the historic dollar value of endowment funds after application of the factors set forth below:

- The duration and preservation of the funds
- The purposes of CJP and the donor-restricted endowment fund
- General economic conditions
- The possible effect of inflation and deflation
- The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
- Other resources of CJP
- The need to make distributions and preserve capital
- The investment policies of CJP

# Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

CJP has a policy of appropriating distributions each year based on a percentage of its endowment funds' average fair value over the prior 16 quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution is planned. This percentage is approved by the Board of Directors each year. CJP does not currently intend to make distributions from endowment funds that do not have appreciation over historic dollar value. However, CJP's Board of Directors will review endowment funds with no appreciation on a case-by-case basis. Any distributions that result in the expenditure of a portion of historic dollar value are subject to the approval of the board and are limited to no more than 10% of historic dollar value on a fund by fund basis and, in aggregate, distributions of this type may not exceed 5% of CJP's unrestricted endowment fund value.

In establishing this policy, CJP considered the long-term expected return on its endowment.

# **Endowment Investment Policy**

CJP has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that CJP must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s), as well as board-designated funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that over time will average the level of the approved CJP endowment spending rate plus inflation. Actual results in any given year may vary from this amount.

# Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives CJP relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). CJP employs a strategy designed to achieve a real return equal to or higher than five percent real return (defined as nominal return net of investment management fees and inflation) over rolling seven- to ten-year periods or a full market cycle, whichever is longer with significant diversification to reduce volatility. CJP has adopted this strategy in order to protect the inviolate nature of the original corpus of

# NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

permanently restricted gifts against potential market declines in the future, to protect purchasing power against the effects of inflation, and to provide a predictable flow of funds to support operations.

This is consistent with CJP's objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified period as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

The following table presents changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020:

	Net Assets Without Restrictions		et Assets With	<b>T</b>		
	Re	strictions	 estrictions		Total	
Balance, June 30, 2019	\$	59,867	\$ 111,282	\$	171,149	
Investment income, net Net realized and unrealized		(23)	119		96	
investment gains, net		(1,259)	 (2,016)		(3,275)	
Total investment return		(1,282)	(1,897)		(3,179)	
Appropriations for expenditure Reclassification based on donor intent		(4,805)	(4,729)		(9,534)	
Contributions and other additions		(59) 3,057	 59 6,948		10,005	
Balance, June 30, 2020		56,778	111,663		168,441	
Investment income, net Net realized and unrealized		(81)	1		(80)	
investment gains, net		15,124	 29,547		44,671	
Total investment return		15,043	29,548		44,591	
Appropriations for expenditure		(4,296)	(5,692)		(9,988)	
Contributions and other additions		2,306	 5,954		8,260	
Balance, June 30, 2021	\$	69,831	\$ 141,473	\$	211,304	

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2021 is as follows:

	Without Restrictions			With estrictions	Total		
Donor-restricted Board-designated	\$	69,831	\$	141,473 -	\$	141,473 69,831	
Total endowment funds	\$	69,831	\$	141,473	\$	211,304	

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

# June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:

	Without Restrictions			With estrictions	Total		
Donor-restricted Board-designated	\$	- 56,778	\$	111,663	\$	111,663 56,778	
Total endowment funds	\$	56,778	\$	111,663	\$	168,441	

## **NOTE 14 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES**

CJP's financial assets available within one year for general expenditures as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	2021		 2020
Operations and board-restricted endowments Cash and cash equivalents Contributions receivable, net Agency loans receivable, net Investments Other assets	\$	8,354 12,914 124 44,270 1,004	\$ 10,275 20,899 167 44,759 661
Total operations and board-restricted endowment		66,666	76,761
Line of credit Line of credit Less: balance owed		20,000 (7,500)	 20,000 (20,000)
Total line of credit		12,500	
Total available within a year	\$	79,166	\$ 76,761

CJP's policy for liquidity management is to structure financial assets to be available as program and operating expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. In addition, CJP invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. To assist managing unanticipated liquidity needs, CJP has a committed line of credit in the amount of \$20,000, which it drew upon. The balance owed on the Line of credit was \$7,500 and \$20,000 on June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

As described in Note 13 - Endowment Funds, CJP has Board Designated funds that function as quasi- endowments. Although CJP does not intend to spend from its quasi-endowment other than amounts appropriated for expenditure, amounts from quasi-endowment could be made available if necessary.

CJP's donor-restricted endowments and income from these endowments are restricted for specific purposes and are not available for general expenditure.

#### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

Included in CJP's net assets without restrictions are donor advised funds ("DAF") amounting to \$1,682,939 and \$1,366,023 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. CJP serves as the sponsoring organization, in accordance with IRS regulations, to these separately identified DAF accounts comprised of contributions made by donors and related earnings from investments. Once donors make contributions, CJP has exclusive legal control over the funds. However, the donor, or the donor's representative, retains advisory privileges with respect to the distribution of funds and the investment of assets in the account.

CJP honors donors' grant recommendations for grants to public charities as described section 509(a)(1) or (2) of the Internal Revenue Code, public charities described in section 509(a)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code that are not "disqualified supporting organization(s)" as defined in section 4966(d)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, or governmental units described in section 170(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code exclusively for public purposes that are consistent with CJP's charitable purposes. Grantees must be in good standing with the IRS. Grants must be for charitable purposes that are not in conflict with CJP's mission, subject to CJP's review and approval. CJP does not consider DAF assets to be available for general expenditures.

#### NOTE 15 - PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN PAYABLE AND FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended June 30, 2020, CJP received proceeds from a loan in the amount of \$2,843 from Century Bank as the lender, pursuant to the Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security ("CARES") Act. The loan is uncollateralized, has a fixed interest rate of 1%, a term of two years and the first payment is deferred for six months, or when the loan is forgiven, whichever is later. Under the CARES Act, borrowers are eligible for forgiveness of principal and interest on PPP loans to the extent that the proceeds were used to cover eligible payroll costs, rent and utility costs over either an 8- or 24-week period after the loan was made. CJP has applied for forgiveness in October 2020 electing an 8-week covered period. In April 2021, the Small Business Administration forgave \$2,807 of the principal and \$32 of the interest due, which is reflected in the Statement of Activities as forgiveness of debt.

# **NOTE 16 - COVID-19 PANDEMIC**

The COVID-19 pandemic, whose effects first became known in January 2020, continues to have a broad, complex and generally negative impact on commerce and financial markets around the world and on aspects of CJP's operations and finances. During the year ended June 30, 2021, CJP experienced significant drops in expenses related to payroll, travel, events, building services and utilities, all due to pandemic-related changes in operations; an increase in grants made in response to the pandemic; and a decrease in event related revenue. The future impact of COVID-19 on CJP will depend on the future course of the pandemic and public policy responses, and remains uncertain.



# CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION BY FUNCTIONAL AREA

June 30, 2021 (In thousands)

ASSETS	CJP Operations		dowment Reserves	Donor Advised Funds	JCEP Partners and Funds Managed for Others		Total	
7652.6								
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	8,354	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	8,354
Contributions receivable, net		28,711	51	-		-		28,762
Gifts and bequests receivable, net		-	64	5,441		-		5,505
Returned allocations receivable, net		3,289	-	-		-		3,289
Agency receivables, net		1,051	-	-		-		1,051
Investments		44,389	223,114	1,682,838		474,081		2,424,422
Property and equipment, net		28,806	-	-		-		28,806
Other assets		2,953	942	 100				3,995
Total assets	\$	117,553	\$ 224,171	\$ 1,688,379	\$	474,081	\$	2,504,184
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS								
LIABILITIES								
Allocations payable	\$	44,884	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	44,884
Accounts payable and accrued expenses		2,186	-	-		-		2,186
Obligations for funds managed for others		-	-	-		29,776		29,776
Line of credit payable		7,500	_	_		-		7,500
Other liabilities		1,677	 	 		53		1,730
Total liabilities		56,247	 -	 		29,829		86,076
Minority interest in JCEP		-	-	-		443,521		443,521
NET ASSETS								
Without restrictions		35,698	82,584	1,682,939		313		1,801,534
With restrictions		25,608	141,587	 5,440		418		173,053
Total net assets		61,306	 224,171	 1,688,379		731		1,974,587
Total liabilities and net assets	\$	117,553	\$ 224,171	\$ 1,688,379	\$	474,081	\$	2,504,184

## CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES BY FUNCTIONAL AREA

# For the year ended June 30, 2021 (In thousands)

	CJP Operations		Endowment and Reserves		Donor Advised Funds		JCEP Partners and Funds Managed for Other		Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE Campaign pledges, net Gifts and bequests	\$	57,765 42	\$	3,845 1,283	\$	160,600	\$ - - 212	\$	61,610 161,925 212
Change in split-interest agreements Grants and other allocations Donated services Forgiveness of debt		710 16 2,839		- - -		166 - -			876 16 2,839
Total support		61,372		5,128		160,766	212		227,478
Investment return, net Rental income Event revenue Administrative service fees Transfer between funds based on change in donors' intent		5,862 403 23 1,635 6,774		46,144 - - 2 (5,814)		259,783 - - (1,595) (960)	100,939 - - - -		412,728 403 23 42
Total revenue		14,697		40,332		257,228	100,939		413,196
Total support and revenue		76,069		45,460		417,994	101,151		640,674
EXPENDITURES Program allocations and distributions: Program allocations Programmatic expenditures Donor advised fund grants		36,092 11,806		2,059 - -		- 21 101,688	- - -		38,151 11,827 101,688
Total program allocations and distributions		47,898		2,059		101,709	-		151,666
Management and general Fundraising		4,020 12,252		<u>-</u>		<u>-</u>			4,020 12,252
Total management, general, and fundraising expenditures		16,272							16,272
Total expenditures		64,170		2,059		101,709			167,938
Minority interest in investment (earnings) losses of JCEP		-		-		-	(100,939)		(100,939)
Net assets contributed through merger with the Jewish Teen Initiative of Greater Boston		61						. <u> </u>	61_
Change in net assets		11,960		43,401		316,285	212		371,858
Net assets at beginning of year		49,346		180,770		1,372,094	519		1,602,729
Net assets at end of year	\$	61,306	\$	224,171	\$	1,688,379	\$ 731	\$	1,974,587

#### NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

June 30, 2021 and 2020 (In thousands)

## **NOTES 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION**

# Schedules of Financial Position and Activities by Functional Area

The consolidating schedule of financial position and the consolidating schedule of activities by functional area reflect the assets, liabilities, net assets of CJP, and changes in net assets in its component functional areas: CJP operating activities, the activities in the Endowment and Reserves, Donor Advised Funds activities, and Jewish Community Endowment Pool minority partner activities. Functional areas may include assets with restrictions and assets without restrictions.

Functional areas are as follows:

<u>CJP operations</u>: includes all fundraising and allocations, as well as investment activities related to cash management. This functional area represents the core annual campaign and fundraising activities as well as allocations to partner agencies and other grantees. Campaign contributions and receivables include multi-year gifts for future periods.

<u>Endowment and reserves</u>: includes donor-restricted endowment investment activities and grants. The reserves include board-designated funds that are maintained to fund certain activities as well as maintain stability for CJP. Activity of the supporting organizations is also included within endowment and reserves.

<u>Donor advised funds</u>: includes contributions into and grants out of donor advised funds as well as investment activities related to DAF assets.

<u>JCEP partners and funds managed for others</u>: reflects investment activity of the JCEP minority partners and funds managed for others.

The consolidating schedule of activities by functional area shows endowment grants and fees paid by donor advised funds, endowment funds and foundations that support CJP operations or allocations. These fees are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements, as they are eliminated in consolidation.